
Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
1 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 
p.m. on Tuesday, April 1, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a notice 2 
posted at City Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Ald. Jim Bialecki, Mayor Joe Chilsen, 5 
Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred Buehler, City Engineer Jarrod Holter, Ald. Jack 6 
Pogreba 7 
 8 
Also Present:  Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert 9 
 10 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 11 
 12 
Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the minutes from the previous 13 
meeting as printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 
 15 
On voice vote, motion carried. 16 
 17 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 18 
 19 
Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 20 
portion of the meeting. 21 
 22 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 23 
 24 
Item 4 – Approximately 6:30 P.M. Public Hearing (or immediately following public input) 25 
– regarding proposed Alley Paving Project assessments between 3rd Avenue North and 4th 26 
Avenue North from Main Street to King Street 27 
 28 
Ald. Pogreba opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak regarding the 29 
proposed Alley Paving Project. 30 
 31 
Caroline Caulum 32 
114 3rd Avenue North 33 
Onalaska 34 
 35 
Caroline asked if Xcel Energy will be notified and if it also will be able to provide any input 36 
regarding the examination of the piping. 37 
 38 
In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Caroline said she is referring to the natural gas piping, 39 
which she noted comes up through the alley and has been in place for several years. 40 
 41 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
2 

Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone else wishing to provide input regarding the proposed 42 
Alley Paving Project and closed the public hearing. 43 
 44 
Item 5 – Resolution 16-2014 – Final Resolution regarding assessments for alley paving for 45 
Alley Paving Project between 3rd Avenue North and 4th Avenue North from Main Street to 46 
King Street 47 
 48 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve Resolution 16-2014 – Final Resolution 49 
regarding assessments for alley paving for Alley Paving Project between 3rd Avenue North and 50 
4th Avenue North from Main Street to King Street. 51 
 52 
Jarrod said a petition to repave this alley had been received in the fall of 2013, and this is one of 53 
the reasons why this project was included in the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget.  Jarrod said 54 
he believes there is consensus among the residents in the neighborhood that the alley’s condition 55 
is deteriorating.  Jarrod noted that this is a typical alley assessment where the city is assessing 56 
one-third to each side.  Jarrod referenced Caroline’s question regarding the Xcel Energy natural 57 
gas pipe and noted there is main gas feeder line that runs through the alley from Locust Street, 58 
runs across Main Street and proceeds south through the alley system.  Jarrod promised that city 59 
staff will consult with Xcel Energy regarding this matter.  Jarrod said he is uncertain if the 60 
houses in the neighborhood are served off the line and again promised to consult with Xcel 61 
Energy. 62 
 63 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the existing pavement will be removed 64 
and replaced with 2 inches of new asphalt pavement. 65 
 66 
Jarrod was asked by Ald. Pogreba to examine the copy of Resolution 16-2014 contained in board 67 
members’ packets and noted the top reads, “Final Resolution regarding assessments for Alley 68 
Paving, Onalaska, WI for the Marcou Road Project.”  Jarrod assured board members this would 69 
be corrected prior to the April 8 Common Council meeting. 70 
 71 
Ald. Pogreba stated the motion needs to be altered. 72 
 73 
Motion and second withdrawn. 74 
 75 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Fred, to accept Resolution 16-2014 as proposed. 76 
 77 
For clarification, Jarrod stated Resolution 16-2014 should instead read it is for the alley paving 78 
between 3rd Avenue North and 4th Avenue North from Main Street to King Street. 79 
 80 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the original estimate that was sent out was 81 
$12.79 per lineal foot.  Jarrod said this total should be lower due to the bids that were received. 82 
 83 
On voice vote, motion carried.  84 
Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
3 

 85 
Item 6 – Review and consideration of professional engineering services for design of iron 86 
and manganese removal facility and renovations at Well #9 87 
 88 
Jarrod noted this item has appeared on the Board of Public Works agenda several times over the 89 
last 15 years.  Jarrod said several efforts have been made in an attempt to alleviate iron and 90 
manganese levels at Well #9.  Jarrod said polyphosphates were added, but also noted the 91 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources strongly encouraged the city to remove the 92 
polyphosphates from the well, which the city did approximately 18 months ago. 93 
 94 
Jarrod stated, “Looking at needing that fourth well for the next 20-year design period, the staff – 95 
and with the recommendation from the consultant – are looking at the addition of iron and 96 
manganese removal at that well.  As part of that, the well was put into service in 1987.  The 97 
building would be renovated for new controls.  They’re at the age where the electrical controls 98 
need to be redone.  We just fixed the roof because it was leaking inside the building, so there is 99 
not a lot to salvage inside the building.” 100 
 101 
Jarrod said city staff had solicited for consulting engineering for the design of an iron and 102 
manganese removal facility and renovations at Well #9 and noted board members’ packets 103 
include a consultant selection summary sheet from three consultants (Davy Engineering, Short 104 
Elliott Hendrickson, Strand Associates).  Jarrod noted that he, Kevin, Fred and Water & Sanitary 105 
Sewer Manager Jim Prindle had scored the proposals and stated they believe Strand Associates 106 
should be hired.  Jarrod said the work is broken up into two segments, noting the preliminary 107 
design portion is anticipated to be $36,900 of the cost.  Jarrod said that after the preliminary 108 
design there will be a full presentation to the Board of Public Works on what is being proposed 109 
for a facility, a firm cost estimate, and how the city’s rates might be affected when the facility is 110 
constructed.  Jarrod said the Common Council would approve the next stage of final design 111 
before any more design work was completed. 112 
 113 
Jarrod said, “We are at the point where we would be working on a preliminary design and 114 
working on moving forward, but we would have another avenue to review this one more time 115 
before it would become final.  What I’m requesting tonight is authorization, which is within the 116 
2014 Capital Improvements Budget, to proceed with the design for $169,600.  But we would 117 
come back after the preliminary design and give a presentation to the Board of Public Works and 118 
then have the Council approve moving forward with the final design.” 119 
 120 
Ald. Pogreba asked Jarrod if he is seeking input regarding the design and the filtration system. 121 
 122 
Jarrod noted the consultant will meet three times with city staff regarding the preliminary design.  123 
The first session will consist of information gathering.  Jarrod said Strand Associates then will 124 
return and present two different possible methods of performing the filtration, as well as options 125 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
4 

for the building’s schematics.  Jarrod said city staff will make a choice at the third meeting and 126 
noted there will be a public meeting prior to the Board of Public Works meeting that will allow 127 
citizens to provide input.  From there, Strand Associates would give a presentation before the 128 
Board of Public Works. 129 
 130 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said Strand Associates will not receive the entire sum of 131 
$169,600 if the city chooses to opt out.  Jarrod said the city would have to pay $36,900 for the 132 
preliminary design if it chooses to proceed.  However, Jarrod also said the city would not have to 133 
pay Strand Associates the remainder of the design fees if the city chooses not to move forward 134 
because no work will have been performed.  Jarrod promised to have City Attorney Sean 135 
O’Flaherty review this and determine if this can be enforced. 136 
 137 
Ald. Pogreba acknowledged that there have been complications at Well #9 for several years and 138 
stated he believes this will be an adequate resolution to the situation. 139 
 140 
Jarrod said part of the water study in which the city had participated included examining the 141 
possibility of moving to another site – possibly the Interstate 90/State Trunk Highway 16 142 
corridor.  However, Jarrod noted there is no difference in water quality in this area.  Jarrod also 143 
noted that while the water age in this area would benefit that side of the city, the water age would 144 
increase in the areas south of Main Street.  Jarrod said it will not be necessary to drill a new well 145 
column if the well is not relocated, and this will benefit the city financially.  Jarrod noted there 146 
are three wells located in the northern section of the city that are in close proximity to one 147 
another.  Jarrod said the sandy land in this section of the city is susceptible to pollution and 148 
expressed reservations over drilling another well in this area.  Jarrod said staff is examining 149 
nitrate levels in the northern section of the city and noted the well rotate in and out of having to 150 
go quarterly sampling.  Jarrod also stated the city’s water age in the eastern section of the city 151 
will suffer if a fourth well is drilled in the northern section of the city.  Jarrod said DNR 152 
mandates state the city must keep a level of chlorine within the water system to ensure citizens 153 
are receiving safe drinking water.  Jarrod said chlorine precipitates out over time, which means 154 
that it is difficult to maintain a proper safety level as water ages. 155 
 156 
In response to Fred’s reference to a past discussion, Jarrod said the well reconstruction project 157 
likely will cost $2.5 million and noted constructing a new well likely would cost approximately 158 
$1.5 million.  Jarrod also noted drilling a new well in the northern section of the city likely 159 
would cost between $1.3 and $1.5 million and added that the water still would need to be treated 160 
if the well were to be drilled in any part of the city where the water quality is the same.  Jarrod 161 
said the water system analysis includes taking into account the highest demand day and the 162 
assumption that the city’s largest producing well is out of service and the city must be able to 163 
supply that demand.  The city must have a fourth well if one well were to be out of service.  164 
Jarrod noted that Well #10 is approximately eight years old, and that both Well #7 and Well #8 165 
required electrical renovations approximately seven years ago.  Well #7 and Well #8 also 166 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
5 

recently received new vertical turban pumps.  Jarrod said he believes Well #9 will last for the 167 
duration of the 20-year design period if it is renovated. 168 
 169 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod reiterated that the project will cost between $2 170 
and $2.5 million. 171 
 172 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to accept the proposal from Strand 173 
Associates for professional engineering services for design of iron and manganese removal 174 
facility and renovations at Well #9 in the amount of $169,600. 175 
 176 
Ald. Pogreba inquired about the higher level of nitrates in the northern section of the city and 177 
asked if this is due to the rural land in the area. 178 
 179 
Jarrod said some of this likely is residual, noting a significant amount originates either from 180 
home septic systems or agricultural practices.  Jarrod said the level of nitrates has not risen to a 181 
level where city staff must perform in-depth study.  Jarrod said the threshold to quarterly 182 
sampling is crossed at 5 milligrams per liter and noted there are times this level is exceeded at 183 
one of the three wells in the northern section of the city.  Jarrod said city staff would have to treat 184 
the water if the nitrate levels exceed 10 milligrams per liter. 185 
 186 
On voice vote, motion carried. 187 
 188 
Item 7 – Review and consideration of costs associated with, funding of, notification of and 189 
issues related to choice of automated cart size for refuse and recycling collection 190 
 191 
Jarrod noted that as of today there have been 2,525 carts requested to be switched out and noted 192 
he had utilized the number 2,540, which is included on the handout distributed to board 193 
members.  Jarrod cautioned board members that due to a late surge the total of 2,540 likely will 194 
increase.  Jarrod noted that Harter’s Quick Clean-Up currently has approximately 775 65-gallon 195 
carts on inventory.  These carts were ordered to use for city residents during the course of the 196 
seven-year contract.  Jarrod said he is proposing to perform an inventory switch-out.  This means 197 
staff will order 95-gallon and 35-gallon carts that will be switched out of Harter’s inventory.  198 
The city will take the 65-gallon carts and resale them as part of a group of resale carts. 199 
 200 
Jarrod said, “This was the easiest way that when we negotiated this with the hauler to try to keep 201 
things whole and keep the contract so we wouldn’t have to have the hauler have extra carts or the 202 
city have extra carts.  This way if we switch them out they’ve got them.  One of the reasons that 203 
they are not going to have a lot of 65-gallon carts left, if you look at their numbers, is I think 204 
there’s going to be people calling once they see the 95-gallon carts come out and saying, ‘I need 205 
a 95-gallon cart.’  With that, Harter’s will charge them $20 a cart.  They’ll take one out of their 206 
inventory and run it out to them and pick up the old cart.  Harter’s is going to end up with more 207 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
6 

65-gallon carts, and that’s the reason we’re ordering more 95-gallon carts right now.  Hopefully 208 
we’re prepared with the future requests that we get at a later time.” 209 
 210 
Jarrod noted that most individuals who are constructing new homes in the city are requesting 95-211 
gallon carts.  This is the reason why 275 95-gallon refuse and 275 95-gallon recycling carts are 212 
being requested for a switch-out with Harter’s.   Jarrod noted that more than 80 percent of the 213 
city’s citizens are requesting a 95-gallon cart and predicted that over time citizens will request 214 
larger carts.  Jarrod referenced the handout distributed to board members and said the cost for the 215 
switch-out will be $158,965. 216 
 217 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve the amount of $158,965 for costs 218 
associated with the choice of automated cart size for refuse and recycling collection.  This is with 219 
the understanding the funds will come from the Refuse and Recycling Fund, and will not affect 220 
the tax levy.  There also will be a $20 charge for any requests for a cart change-out after April 2. 221 
 222 
Ald. Pogreba noted it is possible the figures Jarrod has presented this evening might change on 223 
April 2, which is the deadline for requesting a switch-out.  Ald. Pogreba suggested sending this 224 
matter to the Common Council without a recommendation. 225 
 226 
Jarrod said he would be comfortable with doing so and noted he will have a new handout ready 227 
for the April 8 Common Council meeting. 228 
 229 
Ald. Bialecki suggested that this item be moved on to the Common Council with the 230 
understanding that the financial figure Jarrod has presented might increase. 231 
 232 
Jarrod noted that the 95-gallon carts are manufactured in Kenosha and the 35-gallon carts will be 233 
shipped from California.  This will lead to substantial shipping costs for the 35-gallon carts.  234 
However, Jarrod said that due to the low number of 35-gallon carts being requested, there will be 235 
a significant cost ($7 per cart) to include the IML – the sticker placed on top of the recycling 236 
carts – on the 35-gallon recycling carts.  Jarrod suggested foregoing placing the IML on the 210 237 
35-gallon recycling carts that have been requested.  This will save the city $1,785. 238 
 239 
Fred said he believes there is value in including the sticker. 240 
 241 
Mayor Chilsen asked if perhaps a local print shop could produce the sticker. 242 
 243 
Jarrod said he does not believe this would be possible, noting the IML is hot-stamped into the 244 
lid. 245 
 246 
Jarrod said Rehrig Pacific will be hired to deliver and pick up the carts.  Jarrod said Harter’s is 247 
requesting 1 cent per month increase for each refuse and recycling cart serviced for the life of the 248 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
7 

contract to cover costs for storage, replacement of more costly 95-gallon carts, administration 249 
and risk of future cart overhead due to a minimum order of 108 carts.  This would cost the city 250 
$121 per month. 251 
 252 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to amend the previous motion to include a 1 cent per 253 
month increase for each refuse and recycling cart serviced for the life of the contract. 254 
 255 
Fred noted that while Jarrod is stating there is a 1 cent increase on each refuse and recycling cart, 256 
Harter’s is not housing the carts that are out on the field. 257 
 258 
Jarrod said, “Changing the contract is going to involve more calls now because now you have 259 
different sized carts.  [Gary Harter] is going to be getting calls on just the carts in general.  The 260 
different sized carts aren’t going to fit. … Granted, he only has 700 of them right now to store.  261 
Now you have six carts to store instead of two, and they’re different sizes.  Plus if they have to 262 
get replaced, now you have 65-gallon carts that are all the same.  If he runs out of 35-gallon carts 263 
he has to order 108 minimum because that’s the minimum order of carts.” 264 
 265 
Vote on the Amendment: 266 
 267 
On voice vote, motion carried. 268 
 269 
Vote on the original motion, which includes the amendment. 270 
 271 
On voice vote, motion carried. 272 
 273 
Item 8 – Review and consideration of 2014 pavement maintenance 274 
 275 

A. Chip seal 276 
 277 
Jarrod noted there is a proposed chip sealing list contained in board members’ packets.  Jarrod 278 
said the 2013 price will be utilized and added La Crosse County still is waiting for oil quotes. 279 
 280 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve hiring La Crosse County to chip seal 281 
112,485 square yards at a cost of $178,851. 282 
 283 
On voice vote, motion carried. 284 

 285 
B. Installation of fiber patching material 286 

 287 
Jarrod noted both La Crosse County and Fahrner Asphalt Sealers submitted bids.  Fahrner 288 
Asphalt Sealers’ bid is for $1.42 a pound to apply the city-purchased polyfiber material. 289 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
8 

 290 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to approve hiring Fahrner Asphalt Sealers to perform 291 
36,000 pounds of polyfiber material at a cost of $51,120. 292 
 293 
On voice vote, motion carried. 294 

 295 
C. Polyfiber patching material purchase 296 

 297 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve purchasing polyfiber patching material 298 
from MidStates Equipment & Supply at a cost of $23,230. 299 
 300 
On voice vote, motion carried. 301 

 302 
D. Asphalt pavement expansion joint installation 303 

 304 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve hiring Fahrner Asphalt Sealers to perform 305 
asphalt pavement expansion joint installation for approximately 7,500 lineal feet at a cost of 306 
$16,125. 307 
 308 
Ald. Pogreba asked Jarrod if he has contacted other states to determine whether Fahrner’s price 309 
is fair. 310 
 311 
Jarrod said staff has examined this price over time and noted it increases by a percentage each 312 
year.  However, Jarrod said the price has remained consistent. 313 
 314 
On voice vote, motion carried. 315 

 316 
E. Centerline painting 317 

 318 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to hire Fahrner Asphalt Sealers to perform centerline 319 
painting at a cost of 0.069 cents per lineal foot for approximately 180,000 lineal feet for a total 320 
cost of $12,720. 321 
 322 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the difference between the bids submitted by 323 
Fahrner and Twin City Striping is 0.001 cents per lineal foot. 324 
 325 
Fred asked if Twin City Striping has consistently given the city a discount if the company is paid 326 
early. 327 
 328 
Jarrod said yes and noted the discount was $200. 329 
 330 
On voice vote, motion carried. 331 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
9 

 332 
Item 9 – Review and consideration of quotes for storm sewer inlet installation on alley 333 
between Spruce Street and Troy Street from Park Avenue and 4th Avenue North 334 
 335 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets include a plan showing a storm sewer installation on the 336 
alley off Spruce Street.  Jarrod said the city received three quotes for the storm sewer installation 337 
and noted this item is included within the 2014 Capital Improvements Budget. 338 
 339 
Motion by Jarrod, by Ald. Bialecki, to approve hiring La Crosse Backhoe to install a storm sewer 340 
inlet on the alley between Spruce Street and Troy Street from Park Avenue and 4th Avenue North 341 
at a cost of $7,375. 342 
 343 
On voice vote, motion carried. 344 
 345 
Item 10 – Review and consideration of bids received for 2014 Spring Tree Planting Project 346 
 347 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets include the bid opening for the 2014 Spring Tree Planting 348 
Project.  Jarrod said trees will be installed in the cemetery as well as the boulevard areas where 349 
there were construction projects in 2013.  Boulevard trees also will be installed in areas where 350 
residents have requested them.  Trees also will be planted along East Main Street as part of the 351 
contributions received from the La Crosse County Solid Waste Department landfill.  Jarrod said 352 
that although Kreibich Landscaping has submitted the apparent low bid of $39,235, staff is not at 353 
this time recommending award of any of Alternate #1 or Alternate #2 as the prices for 354 
maintenance and water came in higher than anticipated.  Jarrod said city staff will water the 355 
trees. 356 
 357 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve hiring Kreibich Landscaping for the 2014 358 
Spring Tree Planting Project at a cost of $39,235. 359 
 360 
Ald. Bialecki asked if the trees that will be planted will have the type of roots that will not grow 361 
to a length that will disturb sidewalks. 362 
 363 
Jarrod said trees typically are not installed on a narrow boulevard or there is less than 5 feet of 364 
space.  Smaller-growing trees are installed if there is a power line or an obstruction present.  365 
Jarrod noted there is a 6½-foot boulevard present in the majority of the city and cautioned that 366 
the trees could become large enough to push up the sidewalk 50 years from now. 367 
 368 
Ald. Bialecki asked if perhaps trees with less intrusive roots should be installed. 369 
 370 
Jarrod said most of the trees on the preferred tree planting list have been reviewed and noted 371 
nothing with a high root system is planted. 372 
 373 
On voice vote, motion carried.  374 
Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
10 

 375 
Item 11 – Review and consideration of United States Highway 53/12th Avenue extended 376 
from SS – Gillette Street project by Wisconsin Department of Transportation 377 
 378 
Jarrod noted board members’ packets include a rendition of the proposed north build of the 379 
possible highway system that would go between the City of Onalaska and the City of La Crosse.  380 
Jarrod noted a recent LAPC agenda included an item on the possibility of studying and 381 
constructing this improvement.  The LAPC’s recommendation was to study this and then return 382 
and examine the construction of this area based upon what is discovered in the study.  Jarrod 383 
referenced the map and the connection to 12th Avenue South at SS and said he is eager to see 384 
what the study brings forward in regard to what the traffic impact will be along 12th Avenue 385 
South. 386 
 387 
Jarrod stated, “Having been here for a number of years and just seeing how the traffic patterns 388 
are within the city, this corridor is getting more traffic on it.  As the years progress, I feel this is 389 
going to increase the traffic volume.  I’m not sure to what extent without having the study 390 
performed, but I’m afraid that if we start trying to put more traffic onto 12th Avenue South we 391 
could see detrimental effects or needed improvements.  With that, I support the study.  I want to 392 
look at the study and see what the traffic impacts are and I would have the Mayor write a letter to 393 
that effect to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation that we’re not against the study, but 394 
we are withholding any recommendation to build this until we know what the impacts are and 395 
how those impacts will be addressed.” 396 
 397 
Ald. Bialecki noted that the extension of 12th Avenue South is not located within the City of 398 
Onalaska, but rather in the City of La Crosse.  Ald. Bialecki said the City of Onalaska would be 399 
impacted by more traffic on 12th Avenue South and recollected the early 1990s when requests 400 
were made to widen 12th Avenue South in the anticipation of a double lane.  Ald. Bialecki stated 401 
he believes there is approximately 50 acres of developable commercial land located behind 402 
Famous Dave’s and said any both the City of Onalaska and the City of La Crosse could benefit. 403 
 404 
Ald. Pogreba referenced the map and the bridge going over County Trunk Highway 157 at SS 405 
and asked if there would be any ramps present. 406 
 407 
Jarrod stated the map is outdated and said the original proposal included having CTH 157 go 408 
underneath SS and have no access.  Motorists wishing to go to the Crossing Meadows 409 
development would need to exit at 12th Avenue South and come back around. 410 
 411 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said this project is being looked at as a 412 
separate, self-sustaining project supplying benefits to the needs. 413 
 414 
Ald. Bialecki said he approves of what he sees on the map.  However, Ald. Bialecki also said the 415 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
11 

impact such a project would have would need to be determined. 416 
 417 
Mayor Chilsen said he would like the Board of Public Works to direct him to write a letter to the 418 
Wisconsin DOT stating that while the City of Onalaska is not opposed to the project, the city 419 
would like the DOT to perform a study on how the project would affect the city’s neighborhoods 420 
and businesses. 421 
 422 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Ald. Pogreba, to allow the Board of Public Works to direct 423 
Mayor Joe Chilsen to write a letter to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation stating that 424 
while the City of Onalaska is not opposed to the project, the city would like the DOT to perform 425 
a study on how the project would affect the city’s neighborhoods and businesses. 426 
 427 
On voice vote, motion carried. 428 
 429 
Item 12 – Review and consideration of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 2013 430 
stormwater annual report 431 
 432 
Jarrod said it is necessary for the Board of Public Works to approve this item as part of the 433 
annual report. 434 
 435 
Ald. Pogreba inquired about the city’s TSS removal rate, which is 19.76 percent. 436 
 437 
Kevin said the 20 percent TSS removal rate is a goal set by the Wisconsin DNR, adding the 438 
DNR does not believe that the city needs to expend any additional resources or infrastructure. 439 
 440 
Fred referenced a project performed in the vicinity of Menards and asked if it is part of the 441 
report. 442 
 443 
Jarrod said the soil from the stormwater pond was used to build the off-street pedestrian path.  444 
Jarrod said the pond was lowered close to the 3-foot level; however, the engineered soil was not 445 
put back in.  Therefore, the pond was not able to be counted for what the DNR seeks.  Jarrod said 446 
this will need to be budgeted in a future Capital Improvements Budget so another 2 percent can 447 
be gained if the rest of the project is performed.  Jarrod said there had been discussions regarding 448 
achieving a 40 percent TSS removal requirement by 2013.  However, Jarrod added the rules have 449 
not materialized. 450 
 451 
Kevin noted the permits come up for renewal every five years and the City of Onalaska’s permit 452 
will be due within the next two years.  Kevin said individual drainage basins in the city would be 453 
examined rather than citywide.  However, Kevin estimated this would not take effect for another 454 
10 years. 455 
 456 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
12 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to accept the Wisconsin Department of 457 
Natural Resources 2013 stormwater annual report. 458 
 459 
On voice vote, motion carried. 460 
 461 
Item 13 – Review and consideration of bids received for 2014 Miscellaneous Concrete 462 
Project 463 
 464 
Jarrod said four bids had been received and noted this is for two sidewalk repair zones within the 465 
city.  Jarrod said miscellaneous concrete work and catch basin repair also is being bid out. 466 
 467 
Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve hiring Pember Company of Menomonie 468 
to perform 2014 Miscellaneous Concrete Project at a cost of $94,333.50.  469 
 470 
On voice vote, motion carried.  471 
 472 
Item 14 – Review and consideration of utility bill adjustments due to running of water to 473 
prevent frozen water laterals 474 
 475 
Jarrod referenced a frozen laterals handout distributed to board members, who also were given 476 
copies of the two Code Red messages that went out on Friday, February 7.  Jarrod said city staff 477 
recommended to residents that they take steps such as keeping their thermostat set at a 478 
reasonable temperature to ensure that their water remained on.  The second Code Red message 479 
that was sent stressed that this only was a recommendation.  Jarrod said the message was aimed 480 
toward individuals who were not at home during this time period.  Jarrod referenced the frozen 481 
laterals handout and noted it lists areas where water freeze-ups occurred and noted Herman Court 482 
experienced a significant number of frozen laterals.  Jarrod noted approximately three different 483 
homes on Herman Court experienced difficulties at different points and said city staff determined 484 
that all the residents in the cul-de-sac needed to run their water.  Jarrod noted that other than two 485 
homes on Monroe Street, every other instance of frozen laterals was single, individual units. 486 
 487 
Jarrod said, “Everyone on the list that you have in front of you tonight, city staff physically 488 
informed them to run their water.  We feel that the people on the list, because city staff 489 
physically told them specifically to run their water, we must credit or adjust their bill.  There are 490 
two issues here tonight that need to get reviewed.  The first is citywide.  In my opinion, and from 491 
what staff sent out following the Code Red message, we did not tell anyone mandatorily that all 492 
residents should run their water.  So I feel that there should not be a utility bill adjustment on 493 
those individuals throughout the city.  But I do feel that the ones that are on the list tonight do 494 
deserve an adjustment.” 495 
 496 
 497 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
13 

Jarrod referenced the February 2014 consumption column on the frozen laterals handout and said 498 
city staff physically went out and read everyone’s water meter.  Jarrod referenced the March 499 
2014 consumption column and noted that some citizens had run their water.  This is reflected in 500 
higher bills for these citizens.  Jarrod said staff is exploring the possibility of informing these 501 
customers that their meters were read on February 11 and they would not be billed for any water 502 
from the March reading.  Jarrod referenced columns listing the difference in cubic feet and the 503 
amount that would be credited on the water and sewer bills. 504 
 505 
Jarrod stated, “If we did this, as the table states, it would be a $1,207.92 credit.  I feel we’re in a 506 
better position than a lot of other communities.  Jim Prindle, our Water and Sewer Manager, 507 
gave me a handout today of what a lot of the northern cities in the State of Wisconsin have given 508 
out, and a lot of those smaller municipalities really have a lot of adjustments to try and figure 509 
out.  With that, I’m open for suggestions.” 510 
 511 
Jarrod referenced the sentence “All accounts will be given city average for sewer” on the frozen 512 
laterals handout and said he would like this changed to read, “city average for sewer or the last 513 
three-year average, whichever is less.”  Jarrod referenced 1024 Monroe Street and said this is a 514 
prime example of an individual who had seen his laterals freeze twice.  Jarrod noted the three-515 
year consumption average (March 2011-March 2013) for this address was 558 cubic feet.  Jarrod 516 
said this resident had a reading of 6,980 cubic feet in March 2014 and noted the individual ran 517 
his water consistently after his laterals froze a second time. 518 
 519 
In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the structure at 1008 Oak Avenue South 520 
was unoccupied for a couple of years and this is the reason why there is no data available.  Jarrod 521 
also noted there is a new owner at 317 Fern Street and stated these are not necessarily new units. 522 
 523 
In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said he believes the $1,207.92 includes both water and 524 
sewer. 525 
 526 
Fred noted the sewer costs would be the lesser of the two for the next three billings. 527 
 528 
Jarrod confirmed that the $1,207.92 total includes both water and sanitary sewer. 529 
 530 
Motion by Fred, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve a total credit amount of $1,207.92 for water 531 
and sanitary sewer for the customers listed on the frozen laterals handout distributed by City 532 
Engineer Jarrod Holter. 533 
 534 
Ald. Bialecki asked if the board is setting a precedent if the city experiences below-normal 535 
temperatures in future winters. 536 
 537 
Jarrod said, “If we have a problem and physically tell someone to run their water after we have a 538 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
14 

problem, that would be correct.  We physically told these people.  We physically went out and 539 
informed these residents.  This would only be if we felt there was a big enough problem and we 540 
physically went out and would tell someone to run their water, then we would implement this.” 541 
 542 
Ald. Pogreba asked if there are plans for the city to help fix the affected areas within the next 543 
five years. 544 
 545 
Jarrod stressed that there are very few problems on the list and stated he believes half the 546 
residents on Herman Court left the city during the winter months.  Jarrod noted one individual on 547 
the list discovered his lateral had frozen after he had been gone on business for four days.  548 
Another individual had set his thermostat at 50 degrees. 549 
 550 
On voice vote, motion carried. 551 
 552 
Item 15 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc., MSA 553 
Professional Services, Inc., Mathy Construction, Haas Sons, Winona Mechanical, A-1 554 
Excavating, Wapasha Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and 555 
any other contractor/developer  556 
 557 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 558 
MONTHLY ESTIMATES 559 

 560 
April 1, 2014 561 

 562 
    Original 563 
    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 564 
Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 565 
 566 
1.  SEH INC. (01375) 567 
     Railroad Quiet Zone Study 568 
     Estimate #8  $   14,200.00   $     -       $   11,172.52  $ 1,361.30 569 
 570 
2.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 571 
     Storm Lift 572 
     Electrical Troubleshooting 573 
     Estimate #4  $   -     $     -        $   1,987.54  $   322.14 574 
 575 
3.  SEH INC. 576 
     Solid Waste Public Education 577 
     and Outreach 578 
     Estimate #5  $   7,000.00    $     -          $   6,300.00  $   700.00 579 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 



Board of Public Works 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, April 1, 2014 
15 

 580 
4.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 581 
     Theater Road Traffic Signal 582 
     Construction/Engineering 583 
     Estimate #2  $   8,500.00  $     -          $   3,694.42  $   823.04 584 
 585 
5.  MUNICIPAL WELL & PUMP 586 
     Well #7 & #8 Pump Repairs 587 
     Construction 588 
     Estimate #2  $   41,519.00  $     -          $   6,075.00  $   22,921.00 589 
 590 
6.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 591 
     Scada Upgrade 592 
     Design 593 
     Estimate #11  $   30,000.00  $     -          $   28,361.50  $   1,030.04 594 
 595 
Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to pay the six estimates as printed and on file. 596 
 597 
On voice vote, motion carried. 598 
 599 
Adjournment  600 
 601 
Motion by Ald. Pogreba, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn at 7:35 p.m. 602 
 603 
On voice vote, motion carried. 604 
 605 
 606 
Recorded by: 607 
 608 
Kirk Bey 609 

Reviewed 4/3/14 
 


